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DSIL/OUTWARD/2023-24/136 

August 29, 2023 

“By Mail” 

Corporate Relationship Department 

BSE Limited 

PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, 

Mumbai- 400001 

Fax No.022-22723121/3027/2039/2061 

Security Code: 501148, Security ID : DSINVEST 

Dear Sir/Ma’am, 

Re: ISIN - INE422D01012 
Sub: Notice of the 46™ Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for FY 2022-23 of 

Dalal Street Investments Limited (‘the Company’) 

This is with reference to the provisions of Regulation 30 and 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and our letter no. DSIL/OUTWARD/2023-24/134 

dated August 24, 2023 informing about the 46% Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the 

Company scheduled to be held on Friday, September 22, 2023 at 11.00 a.m. (IST) through Video 

Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means ('VC/0OAVM’), in accordance, with the relevant circulars 

issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SEBI. In this regard, we wish to inform the following: 

Pursuant to the said circulars, AGM Notice and Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23 are 

being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose email ids are registered with the 

Company/Registrar and Transfer Agent (‘RTA")/Depository Participant (‘DP"). These documents 

are also available on the Company’s website at www.dalalstreetinvestments.com 

The Company has provided the facility to its Members to cast their vote electronically, through 

the remote e-Voting facility (before the AGM) and e-Voting facility (at the AGM), on all the 

resolutions set out in the AGM Notice to the Members, who are holding shares on the Cut-off 

date i.e. September 15, 2023. The remote e-voting will commence at Tuesday, September 19, 

2023 (09.00 a.m. IST) and end on Thursday, September 21, 2023 (05.00 p.m. IST). Detailed 

instructions for registering email address(s) and e-voting/attendance at the AGM are given in 

the AGM Notice. 

The AGM Notice and Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23 are enclosed herewith. 

This is for your information and records. 

Yours faithfully, 

for DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

MURZASH eterna 
MANEKSHANA The 0230820 105434 

MURZASH MANEKSHANA 

DIRECTOR 

DIN: 00207311 

Encl: As above
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

Company Overview & Economy Analysis 

The global economy and capital markets experienced a volatile FY 22-23. The global growth 
on the upside came as a surprise at the start of the year, supported by a rebound in services 

consumption and a lower-than-anticipated moderation in goods demand. However, broad- 
based inflationary pressures and sharp rise in energy prices following the outbreak of the 

Ukraine-Russia conflict impacted economic activity. To rein in inflation, the central banks 

of major economies aggressively raised policy rates and commenced quantitative tightening. 
Most governments also scaled back fiscal stimulus as economic activities normalised. 

Resilient demand, tight labour markets across major Advanced Economies (AEs), the 
Ukraine-Russia situation and the dynamic Zero COVID policy of China kept commodity 

prices and inflationary pressures elevated in the first half. However, as the year progressed, 

commodity prices corrected in view of a softening growth outlook, synchronised tight 
monetary policy response and scaling back of fiscal stimulus, thereby easing the inflation 

momentum. However, resilient demand conditions kept the inflation relatively elevated. 
Similarly, both equity and debt markets delivered negative returns in most major economies 

on account of the uncertainty about the inflation trajectory, falling global liquidity, slowing 

growth and the growing prospects of central banks keeping interest rates higher for longer. 

India’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth normalised in 9MFY23. The financial year gone 
by turned out to be quite different from expectations. In India, growth is likely to be 

moderate, weighed down by slowing global trade, lower fiscal impulse and demand 
normalization. 

Your Company continues to mainly undertake business activities of providing advisory 

services and undertaking investment within the parameters of the regulations/ statutes. 

The Total Revenue for the financial year under review was Rs. 106.50 lakhs as against 
Rs. 36.00 lakhs for the previous financial year-mainly because of pandemic impact. The 

profit after tax was Rs. 7.10 lakhs for the financial year under review as against Rs. 2.40 

lakhs reported for the previous financial year. 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company, between the end of the financial year and the date of this Report. 

Industry 

The overall loan book of NBFCs is projected to grow by more than 13% by March 2024. The 
RBI has been appreciative of the efforts of NBFCs including their efforts towards covering 

individuals beyond the financial fold. NBFCs are expected to focus upon new business such 
as unsecured loans and the SME segment which promises a higher growth prospect as 
compared to the traditional products. 

NBFCs are being instrumental to leverage technology for quicker paperless disbursals and 
wider coverage in terms of people. NBFCs are expected to focus on improving the asset 

quality and further improve their profitability. 



We are aware that today every Indian is increasingly conscious of their choices and are much 
better informed than before. It is thus imperative that we ensure that as a Company, we 

remain sharp, agile, smart and responsive to the needs of the consumers. 

Risk Management & Internal Control System 

We have an adequate system of internal controls in place commensurate with the nature of 
our business and size of our operations. 

Our business depends on consumer confidence in the overall economy, economic growth 
rates, and consumer attitudes. Further, volatility in financial market would result in poorer 

returns from long term investments. 

We have adopted risk management practices commensurate with our business activities. 

Outlook 

Your Company is taking continuous efforts to generate the growth drivers, considering the 

strategic priorities and keeping a track on information technology developments and 

compliances thereon. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis, describing our Company’s 
objectives, outlook, opportunities, and expectations may constitute “Forward Looking 

Statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ 
from those expressed or implied expectations or projections, among others. Several factors 

make a significant difference to our Company’s operations including the government 
regulations, taxation and economic scenario affecting demand and supply, natural calamity 

and other such factors over which our Company does not have any direct control. 
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NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 46th Annual General Meeting of the Members of DALAL 

STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“the Company”) will be held on Friday, the 22d day of 
September, 2023 at 11.00 A.M. through electronic mode [Video Conference (“VC”) or Other 

Audio Visual Means (“OAVM?”)] to transact the following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. Adoption of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2023. 
To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, together with the Report(s) of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. Re-appointment of Director, retiring by rotation, Mr. Murzash Manekshana 
(DIN: 00207311) 
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Murzash Manekshana (DIN: 00207311), who 

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.” 

Place: Mumbai BY AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Date: 24/08/2023 FOR DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

GEETA MANEKSHANA 

MANAGING DIRECTOR 
DIN: 03282077 

Regd Office: 409, Dev Plaza S V Road, 

Opp. Fire Brigade Andheri West Mumbai 400 058. 
CIN : L65990MH1977PLC357307 Tel: 91 22 2620 1233. 

Email id:info@dalalstreetinvestments.com Website: www.dalalstreetinvestments.com 

NOTES: 

Pursuant to General Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021, 19/2021, 

21/2021 and 02/2022 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, 
December 8, 2021,December 14, 2021, May 5, 2022 and December 28, 2022 respectively 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars), 

and Circular Nos.SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79,SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/ 
2021/11 and SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 
2021, May 13, 2022 and 5t January, 2023 respectively (collectively referred to as 'SEBI 
Circulars’) holding of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) through VC/OAVM, without the 

physical presence of the Members, is permitted. In compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended (‘Listing Regulations’), MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, 

the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/ OAVM which does not require physical 
presence of members at a common venue. The proceedings of the AGM will be deemed to be 

conducted at the Registered Office of the Company which shall be the deemed Venue of the 
AGM. 



Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is 

entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a 
Member of the Company. However, since this AGM is being held through VC/ OAVM, 
whereby physical attendance of Shareholders has been dispensed with and in line with the 

said MCA Circulars, THE FACILITY TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND CAST VOTE 

FOR THE SHAREHOLDER IS NOT MADE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM and hence the Proxy 

Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 

However, in terms of the provisions of Section 112 and 113 of the Act read with the said 

MCA Circulars, Corporate Members are entitled to appoint their authorized representatives 
to attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM on their behalf and participate thereat, including cast 

votes by electronic means. 

Corporate Members intending to appoint their authorized representatives to attend the 

Meeting pursuant to Section 113 of the Act are requested to send to the Company, a certified 
copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with their respective specimen signatures 

authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf. 

The Shareholders can join the AGM in the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting by following the procedure mentioned 
hereinbelow in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/ OAVM will 

be made available for 1,000 Shareholders on first come first serve’ basis. This will not 
include large Shareholders (i.e. Shareholders holding 2% or more), Promoters, Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Remuneration and 
Nomination Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 

allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first serve’ basis. 

The attendance of the Shareholders attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted 
for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from 16th September, 
2023 to 22nd September, 2023 (both days inclusive). 

As per Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2, details in 

respect of the Directors seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting forms 
integral part of the notice 

Shareholders, who would like to express their views/have questions may send their 
questions in advance at least seven working days prior to the meeting mentioning their name, 

demat account number / folio number, email id, mobile number at 
info@dalalstreetinvestments.com The same will be replied by the Company suitably. 

Members who would like to register themselves as a speaker at the AGM shall send a request 

to the Company at info@dalalstreetinvestments.com from 16th September, 2023 to 21st 

September, 2023. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and 
number of speakers, depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 

Information and other instructions relating to e-voting are as under :- 

The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period :- 
Commencement of e-voting : from 9.00 a.m. (IST) on Tuesday, September 19, 2023. 

End of e-voting : up to 5.00 pm (IST) on Thursday, September 21, 2023. 



The remote e-voting will not be allowed beyond the aforesaid date and time and the 
e-voting module shall be disabled upon expiry of the aforesaid period. 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Accordingly, 

members holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit their PAN to the 
Depository Participants with whom they maintain their demat accounts. Members holding 

shares in physical form should submit their PAN to the Company/ R&T Agent. 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder 

and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the members are provided with the facility to 
cast their votes electronically, through the e-voting services provided by NSDL, on the 

resolutions set forth in this notice. Any person who acquires shares of the Company and 
becomes member of the Company after dispatch of the notice of AGM and holding shares as 

on the cut-off date i.e. 15TH September, 2023, may obtain the login ID and password by 

sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. Instructions for e-voting are given hereunder. 
Resolution(s) passed by the members through e-voting is/ are deemed to have been passed 

as if they have been passed at the AGM 

Since the AGM is held through VC/OAVM, the facility for voting through Ballot paper shall 

not be made available at the AGM. 

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on August 24, 2023 has 
appointed Mr. Shridhar Phadke from SVP & ASSOCIATES, Pune as the Scrutinizer to 

scrutinize the remote e-Voting process and casting vote through the e-Voting system during 
the meeting in a fair and transparent manner. Upon completion of the scrutiny of the e- 

voting, the Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman & Non-Executive Director of 
the Company. The results will be declared on or before 24th September, 2023 and 

communicated to the Stock Exchange, Depository, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and 
displayed on the Company’s website at www.dalalstreetinvestments.com 

In compliance with aforesaid MCA and SEBI circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the 
Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose 

email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. Members may note that the 
Notice calling AGM and Annual Report 2022- 23 are available on the website of the Company 

at www.dalalstreetinvestments.com, on the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited 
at www.bseindia.com and on the website of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 

i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com (the Authorised agency for providing voting through electronic 

means and AGM through VC/OAVM). Company’s web-link on the above will also be provided 
in advertisement being published in newspaper having wide circulation in India (English 

Language) and local newspaper (Marathi Language). 

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this Notice. 

Pursuant to the Circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_ RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated 

3rd November, 2021, the SEBI mandated the listed Companies to record the PAN, 
Nomination, KYC details and Bank account details of all the shareholders holding physical 

securities till 31st March, 2023, failing which the account shall be frozen. Accordingly, our 
RTA has sent a letter along with the KYC form to the concerned members for submitting the 

aforesaid information. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to provide 
their details as per the KYC form enclosed to the letter. Relevant details and forms prescribed 

by SEBI in this regard are available on the website of the Company at https:// 

www.dalalstreetinvestments.com 



SEBI vide its Circular no. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_ RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th 
January, 2022 mandated the listed Companies to issue the securities only in dematerialized 

form while processing the service requests viz. issue of duplicate Securities certificate, Claim 
from unclaimed Suspense Account, renewal / exchange of Securities certificate, 
Endorsement, Sub-division / splitting of Securities certificate, Consolidation of Securities 

certificate / folios, Transmission and Transposition. In view of this, to eliminate all risks 
associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding 

shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized 
form. Members can contact the Company Secretary or Universal Capital Securities Private 

Limited., Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (“RTA”) for assistance in this 

regard. 

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify 
the Company of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. 

Members are also advised to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic 

statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant (‘DP 
and holdings should be verified from time to time 

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses 

are requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in 

electronic form and with RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical form. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts to access e-Voting facility. 

Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders: 

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode can register directly with the depository or will have the option of accessing 

various ESP portals directly from their demat accounts. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given 

below: 

1. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL 
1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... 

https: //eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a mobile. On the e- 

Services home page click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login" which is 

available under 'IDeAS' section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID 
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 

services under Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting 
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to “InstaVote” 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 
2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 

at https: / /eservices.nsdl.com Select "Register Online for IDeAS Portal" or click 

at https:/ /eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb /IdeasDirectReg.isp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https: / /www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a personal computer or on a mobile. 

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which 
is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will 

have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you 



can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. 
LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period. 

2. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing 
user id and password. The option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 

without any further authentication. The users to login Easi / Easiest are requested to 
visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi 

Tab and then use your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option 
for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided 

by the company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting 
page of the e-Voting service provider i.e. LINKINTIME for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there are also links provided to access the 

system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 
providers’ website directly. 

3. Ifthe useris not registered for Easi/Easiest, the option to register is available at CDSL 
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then 

click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access the e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com 

home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile 
& Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, the user 

will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able 
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

3. Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful 

login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 

can see e-Voting feature. Click on the company name or e-Voting service provider name 

i.e. LinkIntime and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form / Non- 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form / Non-Individual 

Shareholders holding securities in demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may 

register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under: 

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https: //instavote.linkintime.co.in 

2. Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: 

A. User ID: Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio 
Number registered with the Company. Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat 

account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID; Shareholders 
holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 



B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have 
not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the 

sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 
C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded 

with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format) 

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as 
recorded with your DP/Company. 

*Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall 

provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above 

*Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above 

> Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 

characters, at least one special Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one 

alphabet and at least one capital letter). 
» Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated). 

3. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

4. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on 

‘Submit’. 

Cast your vote electronically: 

1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ 
icon. 

2. E-voting page will appear. 

3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option 

‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the 

‘View Resolution’ file link). 

4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, 

else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote. 

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders: 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on the e-voting system of LIIPL at https: //instavote.linkintime.co.in and 
register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also 

required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution [authority 
letter / power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised 

representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login 
for the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ 

Institutional shareholders: 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE 

helpdesk by sending a request at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 — 4918 

6000. 



Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective 

helpdesk for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

Shareholders NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

holding securities in | evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 

demat mode with 2499 7000 

NSDL 

Individual Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

Shareholders CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

holding securities in | helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 

demat mode with 1800 22 55 33 

CDSL 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the 

password: 

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID 

[Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option 

available on the e-Voting website of Link Intime: https: //instavote.linkintime.co.in 

o Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’ 

o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on 

“SUBMIT”. 

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her 

registered e-mail address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing 

the information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/ DOI, 

Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. The password should contain 

minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@/#$&*), at least one numeral, at least 

one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User 

ID is Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has 

forgotten the password: 

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 

ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned depository/ depository 
participants website. 

» It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 

take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

» For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used 
only for voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

» During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till 
they have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 



InstaVote Support Desk 

Link Intime India Private Limited 

Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet: 

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https: //instameet.linkintime.co.in & 

Click on “Login”. 

» Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: - 

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No 

¢ Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 
Digit Beneficiary ID 

¢ Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 
Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

¢ Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number 

registered with the Company 

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not 

updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence 
number provided to you, if applicable. 

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number. 

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company. 

> Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is 

marked for the meeting). 

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting 

through InstaMeet: 

1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 
days in advance with the company on the specific email id created for the general meeting. 

2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision 
made by the client. 

3. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the 
meeting. 

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the 
meeting. 

5S. Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by 

switching on video mode and audio of your device. 

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will 

announce the name and serial number for speaking. 

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting 

through InstaMeet: 

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, 

shareholders/ members who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can 

cast the vote as under: 

1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote” 



2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered 
mobile number/ registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click 

on 'Submit'. 
3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the 

option “Favour/ Against” for voting. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/ Against” as desired. Enter the 
number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under 

‘Favour /Against'. 
5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have 

decided to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to 

confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” and 
accordingly modify your vote. 

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change 
your vote subsequently. 

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through 

InstaMeet facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting 

and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility 

during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior 

to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual General 

Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the 

meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops 

connected through broadband for better experience. 

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS 

download stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or 

through Laptops connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to 

fluctuation in their network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN 

connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send 

an email to instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175. 

Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.: InstaMEET 

For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 

InstaMEET, shareholders/ members who are registered as speakers for the event are 

requested to download and install the Webex application in advance by following the 

instructions as under: 

a) Please download and install the Webex application by clicking on the link 

https: / /www.webex.com/downloads.html/ 



& => OO | A webexcom/dow well BL = 

cisco \Webex Solutions ~~ Webex Devices Plans & Pricing ~~ Learn + (QQ Host Join Signin Start for Free 

Webex Meetings Webex Teams 

Looking for real time video conferencing? Looking for messaging and team collaboration? 

HD video for face-to-face meetings One-on-one or group messaging 

Flexible audio-only conference call options Digital two-way whiteboarding 

Easy screen sharing Rich content and file sharing 

Meet across any device Video calling 

wnload for Windows 4 nload for Windows 

Download Teams VDI 

Also available here Also available here =) 

‘Webex Solutions Webex Devices Plans & Pricing Learn + Q Host Jon sianin~ 

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 

Double-click the The Webex Meetings setup Once installed 

webexapp.msi file you wizard will launch. Follow the app will launch 

downloaded the instructions to set up. automatically. 

To open the app double-click 

the Webex Meetings icon on your 

desktop. 

- a 
What do you want to do with webexapp.msi (88.1 MB)? pe po va pra— 7% 
From: akamaicdn.webex.com a 

alialn 
cisco Webex Solutions + Webex Devices Plans & Pricing Learn v (QQ Host Join Signin v Start for Free 

#8 Cisco Webex Meetings - InstallShield Wizard x 

Welcome to the InstallShield Wizard for Cisco 
Webex Meetings 

The Installshield (R) Wizard wil install Cisco Webex Meetings on 
your computer. To continue, dick Next. 

Step 3 

am speEisity ease [Boeiinstalled 
app will launch 
utomatically. 

alialie 
seo 

To open the app double-click 

the Webex Meetings icon on your 



mn 
cisco Webex Solutions ~  Webex Devices Plans & Pricing Learn + (Host Join Signin v Start for Free 

18 Cisco Webex Meetings - InstallShield Wizard x 

License Agreement 

Please read the folowing license agreement carefully. 

[CISCO WEBEX LLC LICENSE AGREEMENT (AS APPLICABLE TO THE ~ 
[PARTICULAR DOWNLOAD) 

[IMPORTANT NOTICE-PLEASE READ PRIOR TO USING THIS SOFTWARE: This 
[license agreement ("License Agreement") is a legal agreement between you (either an individual 
lor an entity) and Cisco Webex LLC ("Webex") for the uss of Webex software you may be 

Step 1 Irequired to download and install to use certain Webes services (such software, together with Step 3 
the underlying documentation if made available to you, the Software"). By clicking on the 

Double-click tf [pution containing the "I accept” language, by installing the Software or by otherwise using the Ince installed 
"| |software, you agree to be bound by the terms of this License Agreement. IF YOU DO NOT 5 

webexapp.msi fil§ |aGREE To THE TERMS OF THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT, CLICK ON THEBUTTON + [@pp will launch 

downloaded] gut the terms in the teense agreement utomatically. 

1 do not accept the terms in the license agreement: 

cons nes 

Step 1 Enter your First Name, Last Name and Email ID and click on Join Now. 

1 (A) Ifyou have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the meeting 

by clicking on Join Now 

1 (B) If Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option 

to either Add Webex to chrome or Run a temporary application. 

Click on Run a temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this 

exe file to run the application and join the meeting by clicking on Join Now 

b) If you do not want to download and install the Webex application, you may join the 

meeting by following the process mentioned as under: 

atlialn, 
cisco 

Event Information =) 

Mention your First 
name, Last name and 
email address 

Event status: Join Event Now 
Date and time: 

‘You cannot join the event now because it has not started. 

Duration: 

Description: 

By joining this event, you are accepting the Cisco Webex Terms of Service and Privacy 
Sialement 

If you are the host, start your event 

1. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their 

questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, 
email id, mobile number at info@dalalstreetinvestments.com. The same will be replied 

by the company suitably. 

2. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of 
speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 

Registered Office and Communication details of the Company: 
Universal Capital Securities Pvt. Ltd. Regd Office: 409, Dev Plaza 

(“Universal Capital Securities”) S V Road, Opp. Fire Brigade 
C-101,247 Park. LBS. Marg, Andheri West Mumbai 400 058. 

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai : 400083 Tel: 91 22 2620 1233, 
Tel : 49186178-79,28207203-05 Email id:info@dalalstreetinvestments.com 

Fax: 28207207 www.dalalstreetinvestments.com 

E MAIL: info@unisec.in 



ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 

Annexure A 

ANNEXURE PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS AND 
SECRETARIAL STANDARD-2 ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF 

INDIA, INFORMATION ABOUT THE DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE APPOINTED / RE- 
APPOINTED IS FURNISHED BELOW: 

Particulars Murzash Manekshana 

Date of Birth 14th July, 1972 
Date of Appointment 14th January, 2019 

Qualifications Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Expertise in specific 

functional areas 

Having expertise in the area of Finance & Risk Advisory 

Wealth Management, Investment Banking, Private Equity 

Fund Strategic Planning, Capital Raising, Finance, Consulting 
and Advisory in Infrastructure Development. 

Number of shares 

held in the Company 

2,35,305 Shares 

List of directorships 

held in other 

companies * 

Pentacap Advisors Private Limited 

Number of Board 
Meetings attended 

during 2022-2023 

5 (Five) 

Chairperson / Member 
in the Committees of 

the Boards of 
companies in which 

she/ he is a director 

Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

CSR Committee 

Relationships Mrs. Geeta Manekshana, Director 

directors inter se Wife 

Remuneration last NIL. 

drawn (Including 

sitting fee & 
commission) 

*Based on disclosures received from the Director. 



DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

To, 

The Members, 

Your Directors present their 46th Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements of 

DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED (‘the Company’) for the Financial Year ended 
31st March, 2023. 

REGISTERED OFFICE 

During the year under review, your Company is currently having its registered office at 409 

Dev Plaza, S.V. Road, Opp. Fire Brigade, Andheri West Mumbai 400058, Maharashtra. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Company's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2023 is summarized 

below: 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars Financial Results for the year ended as at 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Revenue from Operations 106.50 36.00 

Other Income 23.57 49.24 

Total Expenses 122.97 82.84 

Profit/ (Loss) before tax & prior period 0 0 
expenses 
Prior period expense (Net)/Exceptional 0 0 
Item 

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 7.10 2.40 

Tax Expense (Net) 0.00 0.00 

Profit /(Loss) After Tax and before 7.10 2.40 

Share of Profit/ (Loss) of Associates/ 

Joint Venture 

Share of Profit/ (Loss) of Associates/ 0] 0] 

Joint Venture 

Net Profit /(Loss) After Tax 7.10 2.40 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified 0] 0] 
subsequently to profit or loss 

Items that will be reclassified (12.33) 18.18 

subsequently to profit or loss 

Total Comprehensive income, net of (12.33) 18.18 
tax 

Total Comprehensive Income for the (5.23) 20.58 
year attributable to owners of the 

Company 

Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 

Basic 2.25 0.76 

Diluted 2.25 0.76 

*Note: The above figures are extracted from the standalone financial statements as per 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). For the purpose of transition to Ind AS, the 

Company has followed the guidance prescribed in Ind AS 101, First-Time Adoption of 

Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2017 as the transition date. 



PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY 

The Total Revenue for the financial year under review was Rs. 106.50 lakhs as against 

Rs. 36.00 lakhs for the previous financial year mainly because of pandemic impact. The 
profit after tax was Rs. 7.10 lakhs for the financial year under review as against Rs. 2.40 
lakhs reported for the previous financial year. 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 

Company, between the end of the financial year and the date of this Report. 

DIVIDEND 

To conserve resources for future, your Directors’ do not recommend any dividend for the 
financial year under review. In terms of Regulation 43A of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations 

2015, (“the Regulations”), including amendments thereunder, the Dividend Distribution 
Policy shall not be applicable to the Company. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

The Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to Reserve. 

NBFC UPDATES 

Your Company continues to mainly undertake business activities of providing advisory 
services and undertaking investment within the parameters of the regulations/ statutes. 

MAJOR EVENTS OCCURRED DURING THE YEAR 

MATERIAL CHANGES FROM END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TILL DATE OF REPORT 

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to 

which the financial statements relate and the date of this report. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

The Company has not undergone any change in the nature of business during the year. 

SHARE CAPITAL 

The present Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 2,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two 

Crores Only) divided into 20,00,000 (Twenty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. The 
Paid-up Equity Share Capital is Rs. 31,50,740/- (Rupees Thirty-One Lakhs Fifty Thousand 

Seven Hundred and Forty only ) divided into 3,15,074 (Three Lakh Fifteen Thousand 

Seventy-Four) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each) as at March 31, 2023. 

LISTING FEES 

Equity Shares of your Company are listed on BSE Limited. Your Company has paid the 

required listing fees to Stock Exchange. 

DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public under Chapter V of the Companies 
Act, 2013, during the financial year under review. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: 

The Management Discussion and Analysis as required under the Listing Regulations forms 
an integral part of this report and is presented separately. 



DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

As on March 31, 2023, the Board comprised of One Non-Executive Director, One Managing 

Director, two Non-Executive-Independent Directors. The Board is well diversified and 
consists of one Women Director as well. 

Section 152 of the Act provides that unless the Articles of Association provide for retirement 

of all directors at every Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), not less than two-third of the total 
number of directors of a public company (excluding the Independent Directors) shall be 

persons whose period of office is liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation, 
of which one-third are liable to retire by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Murzash Manekshana 

(DIN: 00207311), Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and, being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. A Profile of Mr. Murzash Manekshana, as required 
by Regulation 36(3) of the LODR is given in the Notice convening the forthcoming AGM. 

As on the date of this report, Mr. Murzash Manekshana, Director and Ms. Geeta 

Manekshana, Director & CEO, Ms. Stefanie Leena Dsilva, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. 
Mahesh Deshmukh, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

within the meaning of sections 2(51) and 203 of the Act read together with the Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

The composition of the Board is in accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Act 
and Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, with an appropriate combination of Non- 

Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 

The complete list of Directors along with the KMPs of the Company has been provided as 

part of the Annual Report. 

There was one change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. Mr. Rishi Shah was 

appointed as CFO, KMP of the Company w.e.f. November 13, 2021 and subsequently 
replaced by the existing CFO Ms. Stefanie Dsilva from May 25, 2022. Your Company has 

submitted the requisite disclosures to this effect from time to time. 

MANAGING DIRECTOR/DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) 

CERTIFICATE 

In terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations, the certificate, as prescribed in Part B of Schedule 

IT of the said Regulations, has been obtained from the Director and Chief Financial Officer, 
for the Financial Year 2022-23 with regard to the Financial Statements and other matters. 

The said Certificate forms part of this Report. 

Declaration by Independent Directors 
All Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independence, pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 

stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act 

and Regulations 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and they are not aware of any 
circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair 

or impact his/her ability to discharge his/ her duties with an objective independent 
judgment and without any external influence. 

In compliance with Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014, all the Independent Directors (“IDD”) of the Company have registered themselves with 

the India Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA), Manesar and have included their names in the 
databank of Independent Directors within the statutory timeline. They have also confirmed 

that they had appeared for the online proficiency test within a period of one year, wherever 

applicable. 



Further, there has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as IDDs of the 

Company. 

Declaration by the Company 

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors as 
specified in Section 164(2) of the Act read with Rule 14 of Companies (Appointment and 

Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014. 

CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTEES 

During the year under review, the composition of different Committees of your Board of 
Directors is given hereunder: 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility of overseeing the quality and 

integrity of the accounting, auditing and reporting practices of the Company and its 
compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements. The terms of reference of Audit 

Committee cover the areas mentioned under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Pursuant to which, the details of composition, meetings and attendance of the Meetings of 

the Audit Committee are as under:- 

S.No Name Designation No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

1 Mr. Umesh Gosar Chairman 4 4 

2 Mr. Pranav Joshi Member 4 4 

3 Mr. Murzash Manekshana Member 4 4 

There have been no instances of non-acceptance of any recommendations of the Audit 

Committee by the Board during the financial year under review. 

NOMINATION & REMUNARATION COMMITTEE 

The Board has a Nomination and Remuneration policy, which is generally in line with the 
existing industry practice and applicable laws. The policy has been displayed on the 
Company’s website viz.www.dalalstreetinvestments.com. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assist the Board in overseeing the method, 

criteria and quantum of compensation for directors and senior management based on their 
performance and defined assessment criteria. The Committee formulates the criteria for 

evaluation of the performance of Independent Directors & the Board of Directors; identifying 
the persons who are qualified to become directors, and who may be appointed in senior 

management and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. The terms of the 

reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee covers the areas mentioned under 
section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Pursuant to which, the details of composition, meetings and attendance of the Meetings of 

the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are as under: 

S.No Name Designation No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

1 Mr. Pranav Joshi Chairman 1 1 

2 Mr. Umesh Gosar Member 1 1 

3 Mr. Murzash Manekshana Member 1 1 

4 Ms. Geeta Manekshana Member 1 1 



STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Terms of Reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are in conformity with 

Section 178 of the Act and LODR Regulations. 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of 3(three) Directors, of which two are 

Independent and one is Non-Executive Director. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
is headed by Mr. Umesh Gosar, Independent Director of the Company. 

Names of Members of the Committee are given below: 

S.No Name Designation 

1 Mr. Umesh Gosar Chairman 

2 Mr. Pranav Joshi Member 

3 Mr. Murzash Manekshana Member 

Mr. Deshmukh has been appointed as the Compliance Officer who monitors the share 
transfer process and liaises with the Authorities such as SEBI, Stock Exchanges, and 

Registrar of Companies etc. The Company complies with the various requirements of the 

LODR & depositories with respect to transfer of shares and share certificates are sent to 
them within the prescribed time. 

The Committee looks into the grievances of the Shareholders related to transfer of shares, 

payment of dividend and non-receipt of annual report and recommends measure for 

expeditious and effective investor service etc. 

The Company has duly appointed Share Transfer Agent (R&T Agent) for servicing the 
shareholders holding shares in physical or dematerialised form. All requests for 

dematerialisation of shares are likewise processed and confirmations thereof are 

communicated to the investors within the prescribed time. 

During the year under review, no Investor complaints were pending. 

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors 

prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act and the Code of Conduct for Directors and senior 
management personnel of the Company. 

Based on the confirmations/ disclosures received from the Directors under Section 149(7) of 
the Companies Act 2013 and on evaluation of the relationships disclosed, the following Non- 

Executive Directors are considered as Independent Directors: 
a. Mr. Pranav Joshi 

b. Mr. Umesh Gosar 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS 

The Board has established a comprehensive process to evaluate the performance of the 
Board, its Committees and of individual directors. The performance evaluation matrix 

defining the criteria of evaluation for each of the above has been put in place. The 
performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the other members 

of the Board (excluding the Director being evaluated). A meeting of the Independent Directors 

was held on February 10, 2023 to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and 
the Board as a whole. The Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee had 
updated the other members of the Board about the outcome of the evaluation process. 



DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 

AS) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial 
instruments, which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Act (to the extent 
notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The 

Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act), read with 
Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Company has adopted all Ind AS 
Standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with applicable transition 

guidance. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued 

accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard 
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

As required under clause (¢) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013, 

Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, state that: 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(ii) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 

profit of the Company for the year ended on that period; 
(iii) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities; 
(iv) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

(v) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; & 

(vi) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

REPORTING OF FRAUDS 

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the statutory 

auditors to report to the Audit Committee and/or Board under section 143(12) of the Act 
and rules framed thereunder. 

MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY 

There is no subsidiary of the Company. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

The Company has prepared the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 
as per Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual 

performance evaluation of its own performance as well as of its Committees thereof and of 
the Directors individually. 



FAMILIARIZTION/ ORIENTATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

After the successful open offer completion and charge as taken by the new Board members, 

the Independent Directors attended a Familiarization/ Orientation Program as being 
inducted by the Board. 

The Company had devised the detailed framework for the Familiarization Program and also 
approved the format of the formal letter of appointment as required to be given to the 

Independent Directors, outlining their role, function, duties and responsibilities. 

REMUNERATION POLICY 

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
framed a policy for selection, appointment and remuneration of Directors and KMPs. 

Policy for Remuneration to Directors/Key Managerial Personnel 
i. Remuneration to Managing Director/Whole-time Directors: 

(8) The Remuneration/Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director / Whole-time 

Directors, etc. shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force and the 

approvals obtained from the Members of the Company. 
(b) The Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to 

the Board of Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration 
to Managing Director/ Whole-time Directors. 

ii. Remuneration to Non-Executive/Independent Directors: 

(a) The Non-Executive/Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other 
remuneration as permissible under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(b) All remuneration of the Non-Executive/Independent Directors (excluding 

remuneration for attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013) shall be subject to ceiling/limits as provided under the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the 
time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be such as may be 

recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the 
Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be. 

(¢) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and shall also not 

be eligible to participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company. 
(d) Any remuneration paid to Non-Executive/ Independent Directors for services 

rendered which are of professional nature shall not be considered as part of the 
remuneration for the purposes of clause (b) above if the following conditions are 

satisfied: 

e The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and 

e In the opinion of the Committee, the Director possesses the requisite qualification 
for the practice of that profession. 

iii. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel: 
(8) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel shall consist of fixed pay, in 

compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with 
the Company’s Policy. 

(b) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to 

Provident Fund, contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided 
from time to time in accordance with the Company’s Policy. 

Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors 

No sitting fees were paid to non-executive non-independent Directors or independent 
Directors as they have waived their entitlement for the same. 



Non-executive Directors of a company’s Board of Directors add substantial value to the 
Company through their contribution to the Management of the Company. In addition 

they also play an appropriate control role. Even considering the valuable role of the 
Independent Directors of the Company, your company is in the process to finalized the 
sitting fees structure and shall update the members at large subject to regulatory 

approval and compliance(s) if any. 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

During FY 2022-23, 5 (Five) Board meetings were held on May 25, 2022, August 11, 2022, 

August 27, 2022, November 10, 2022 and February 10, 2023 respectively. The maximum 

time gap between any two meetings did not exceed prescribed period of one hundred twenty 
days. The particulars of directors present at various Board and Committee meetings are 

given in the said Report. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2 

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and 

such systems are adequate and operating effectively. During the year under review, the 
Company was in compliance with the Secretarial Standards (SS) i.e., SS-1 and SS- 2, relating 

to “Meetings of the Board of Directors” and “General Meetings”, respectively. 

IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE ACTION 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the specified time limit for 
implementation of Corporate Actions. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the 

Company as paid up Equity Share capital not exceeding rupees ten crore and net worth not 

exceeding rupees twenty-five crores, as on the last date of the previous financial year and 
the specific certificate to this effect has been obtained by the Company & kept on its records. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(2) of the Act and the rules made thereunder, the 
Members at the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 26th September, 2018, 

had appointed Priti Mehta & Company, Chartered Accountants (with registration number 

103429W) as the Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold office for a term of One year i.e., 
from the conclusion of the said Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 42nd Annual 

General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2019. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of Companies Act, 2013, M/s Priti Mehta 
& Company, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No.103429W) were 

appointed as auditor for a period of 5 years till the Conclusion of 477d Annual General 

Meeting, subject to ratification of their appointment by the shareholders, every year. 

The Company has received confirmation from M/s Priti Mehta & Company, Chartered 
Accountants (with registration number 103429W) to the effect that their appointment/re- 

appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits under Section-141(3)(g) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified for re-appointment. 



Pursuant to the amendment to Section 139 of the Act effective from May 07, 2018, 
ratification by shareholders every year for the appointment of Statutory Auditors is no longer 

required and accordingly, the Notice of ensuing 46th AGM does not include the proposal for 
seeking shareholders’ approval for ratification of Statutory Auditors appointment. 

There is no audit qualification, reservation or adverse remark for the year under review. 

The Auditors’ Report to the Members for the year under review is unmodified and does not 
contain any qualification. The Notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are 

self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further clarifications under Section 134(3)(f) 

of the Act 

INTERNAL AUDITOR 

Internal Audit for the year ended March 31, 2023 was done by Praful Karia and Company 

and Internal Audit report at periodic intervals were placed before the Audit Committee. 

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT 

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the 
provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, are not applicable for the business activities carried 

out by the Company. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 

thereunder the Company has appointed Mr. Harshad Pusalkar, from Pusalkar & Co, 

Practising Company Secretaries bearing CP No. 23823 as secretarial auditors for the 

Company. The secretarial audit report in prescribed form i.e. MR3 for the Financial Year 

ended 31st March, 2023 is annexed to the Board Report. There were no qualifications, 

reservation or adverse remarks or observations made in the secretarial audit report. 

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

Your Company’s paid-up equity share capital and networth, on last day of the previous year, 
i.e., on March 31, 2023 are below the threshold limits mentioned in the Regulation 15(2) of 

the SEBI LODR Regulations. Hence, the compliance w.r.t. to Regulation 24A, i.e., Secretarial 
Compliance Report is not applicable to the Company for the financial year under review. 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder, the 
Company had formulated and adopted a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at 

Workplace. The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the 

year under review. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Business Risk Evaluation and Management is an ongoing process within the Organization. 

The Company has a robust risk management framework to identify, monitor and minimize 
risks as also identify business opportunities. The Audit Committee and the Board 

periodically review the risks and suggest steps to be taken to manage/ mitigate the risk 
through a properly defined framework. During the year, no major risks were noticed, which 

may threaten the existence of the Company. 



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Company does not meet the criteria of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. But your Company have 

taken the initiatives to carry out the CSR activities during the year. The Directors have 

approved the CSR policy of the Company along with the amendments thereon to provide a 

guideline for CSR activities of the Company. Your Company was in the process of identifying 

worthwhile avenues for CSR expenditure during the year and the company continues to 

remain committed towards undertaking CSR activities for the welfare of the society. 

Composition of the CSR Committee is as (i) Mrs. Geeta Manekshana — Chairperson — 

Managing Director — Non Independent Director, (ii) Mr. Murzash Manekshana — Member — 
Non Executive — Non Independent Director and (iii) Mr. Umesh Gosar — Member — Non 

Executive — Independent Director. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

There is no specific information required to be captured regarding loans, guarantees and 

investments under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 as the Company 

has given loans or made the investments which are within the stipulated limits as per the 
Act during the year under review. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE RELATED PARTIES 

There is no transaction with Related Party which requires disclosure under Section 134(3) 
(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Related Party Disclosures under Accounting Standards mentioned in Note 31 to the 

Financial Statements. Hence, AOC -2 is not required to be attached to the said report. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members 

of the Board and KMPs/ specified employees in the course of day to day business operations 
of the Company. All the Board Members have confirmed compliance with the Code. A 

declaration to this effect signed by the Director of the Company appears elsewhere in this 

Annual Report. 

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading as per Regulation 8(2) policy is available 
on the website of the Company. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The Company believes that the key to excellent business results is an excellent talent pool. 

People Management Practices in the Company continuously strive towards attracting, 
retaining and developing the best talent required for the business to grow. The Total number 

of employees of the Company as on March 31, 2023 stood at 3(three). 

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism Policy/ Whistle Blower Policy to deal 

with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any which provides formal mechanism 

to the directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or 
suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. Staying 

true to our core values of Strength, Performance and Passion and in line with our vision of 
being one of the most respected companies in India, the Company is committed to the high 

standards of Corporate Governance and Stakeholder Responsibility. The said Policy ensures 
that strict confidentiality is maintained in respect of whistle blowers whilst dealing with 

concerns and also specified that no discrimination will be meted out to any person for a 



genuinely raised concern. The Policy on Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Mechanism may 
be accessed through website of the Company viz. www.dalalstreetinvestments.com 

PERFORMANCE OF JOINT VENTURE/CONSORTIUM 

There are no Companies/LLPs which are Associates/Consortium of the Company. 

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

There are no associate companies, hence the prescribed Form AOC-1 is not required to be 
attached to this Report. A Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year 2022-23 is attached 

to the Balance Sheet. 

Pursuant to Sections 134(3)(a) and 92(3) of the Act, read with Rule 12 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return in e-form MGT-7 may 
be accessed on the Company’s website at the web link www.dalalstreetinvestments.com 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The Company primarily working in the advisory and investment segment and not involved 
in any industrial or manufacturing activities, the Company has no particulars to report 

regarding conservation of energy and technology absorption as required under Section 134 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. 

During the year under review, the Company did not have any foreign exchange earnings, or 
the foreign exchange outgo towards Business promotion, Advertisement expenses, Legal 

consultancy and Professional fees. 

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

Your Company has an effective internal financial control and risk-mitigation system, which 

are constantly assessed and strengthened with new/revised standard operating procedures 
which also covers adherence to the Company’s Policies for safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of accounting 

records and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. The Company’s internal 
financial control system is commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its 

operations. 

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct for prevention of insider trading. All the 

Directors, Senior Management employees and other employees who have access to the 

unpublished price sensitive information of the Company are governed by this code. During 
the year under report, there has been due compliance with the said code of conduct for 

prevention of insider trading based on the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 
2015. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND OPERATIONS OF THE 

COMPANY 

During the year under review, there were no significant or material orders passed by any 

Regulator, Court or Tribunal against the Company, which could impact its going concern 
status or operations. 

DETAILS OF AN APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR 

STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR. 



Company has not made any application during the year or no application has been filed 

against the company or there is no proceedings pending against or for the Company under 
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016. 

DETAILS OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE 
AT THE TIME OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING 

A LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS 
THEREOF. 

There is no one time settlement made during the financial year. 

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC) 

No such process initiated during the period under review under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC). 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT (BRSR) 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, including amendment thereunder, the Business Responsibility and 

Sustainability Report (BRSR) for Financial Year 2022-23 is not applicable to the Company. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in this Directors’ Report and Management Discussion and Analysis describing 

the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be 
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and 

regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. 

Important factors that could make difference to the Company’s operations include changes 
in the government regulations, tax regimes and economic developments within India or 

abroad. 
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To 
The Members, 

DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

409, Dev Plaza, S. V. Road, 

Opp. Fire Brigade, Andheri (West), 

Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400058 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good Corporate Governance practices by M/s. DALAL STREET 

INVESTMENTS LIMITED (hereinafter called "the Company") bearing CIN: 
L65990MH1977PLC357307. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided 

me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by 

the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit 

period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 ,complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper processes and compliance 

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED ("the Company") for the financial 

year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of: 
©) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under to the extent 

applicable; 
(11) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there 

under; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial Borrowings; -- Not applicable to the Company since it 

has no Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings. 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):- 

oe The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

e The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

e The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 

eo The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

e The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) 
Regulations, 2018. 



I report that, during the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions 
of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Standards mentioned above. 

I further report that, there are no events/actions in pursuance of following requiring 
compliance thereof by the Company during the audit period. 

eo The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 

e The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; 

eo The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993; 

e The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009; 

e The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)Regulations 1998; 

I further report that, the Company has confirmed that there are no other laws which are 

specifically applicable to the Company. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the following: 

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under 
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013; and 

(11) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations") 

I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with Non-Executive - Non Independent 
Director as Chairman, Managing Director and Independent Directors. The changes in the 

composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 

carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and to comply with composition of 
Board of Directors as the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 

and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

For Pusalkar & Co. 

Company Secretaries 

Firm Unique Code S2020MH771800 

Name CS Harshad Pusalkar 

Proprietor Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice 
Place : Mumbai Membership No. FCS-10576C P No. 23823 

Date: August 9, 2023 UDIN: FO10576E000772095 



To, 
‘Annexure A’ 

The Members 
DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

409, Dev Plaza, S. V. Road, Opp. Fire Brigade, 

Andheri (West), Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400058 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. 

ii, 

iil, 

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. My Responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based 

on my audit. 
I have followed the audit practices and processes as are appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 

verification was done on test check basis to ensure that the correct facts are reflected in 
the secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a 

reasonable basis for my opinion. 
The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect 
tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts have not been 

reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by the statutory 
financial auditors, tax auditors, and other designated professionals. 

iv. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management Representations about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and occurrence of events etc. 
v. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test check basis. 

vi. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 

the affairs of the Company. 

vii. During the audit period there were no other specific events / actions in pursuance of the 
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. having a major bearing on the 

Company's affairs. 

For Pusalkar & Co. 

Company Secretaries 

Firm Unique Code S2020MH771800 

Name CS Harshad Pusalkar 
Proprietor Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice 

Place : Mumbai Membership No. FCS-10576C P No. 23823 
Date: August 9, 2023 UDIN: FO10576E000772095 



COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE OF CONDUCT 

To, 

The Members of 

DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

Mumbai 

The Board has formulated the Code of Conduct for Business Ethics for all Directors and 

Senior Managers of the Company which has been posted on the website of the Company. It 
is hereby affirmed that all Directors and KMPs/Senior Managers have complied with the 

Code of Conduct for Business Ethics framed by the Company and in terms of provision of 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and a confirmation to this effect for the year 2022-23 has 
been obtained from all Directors and KMPs/ Senior Managers. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Place : Mumbai 

Date: August 24, 2023 
Murzash Manekshana 

Director 

DIN: 00207311 



CEO / CFO Certification 

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Director and Chief Financial Officer of 
DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED (“the Company”) to the best of our knowledge 

and belief certify that: 

a. We have reviewed financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and that to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 
or contain statements that might be misleading; 

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

b. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions are entered 

into by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the 
Company’s code of conduct. 

c. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls over financial 
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems pertaining 

to financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit 

Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we 
are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

i. significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
ii. significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement 

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s 
internal control system over financial reporting. 

For DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

MURZASH MANEKSHANA 

Director 

DIN: 00207311 

STEFANIE LEENA DSILVA 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 24, 2023 



DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT 

This is to confirm that the Company has obtained from all the Members of the Board and 

Senior Management Personnel affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct 
for Directors and Senior Management Personnel as required under Regulation 26(3) of the 

Listing Regulations for the FY 2022-23. 

For DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

Murzash Manekshana 

Director 

DIN: 00207311 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 24, 2023 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMING PART OF 

ANNUAL REPORT OF 

DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 



Proprietor CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

pad HAL (CAC ] PRITI V. MEHTA & COMPANY 

801/602, SURYA HOUSE T | D22-25011046 / 47 6TH FLOOR, ROAD NO.T, E - mehlavipulpGogmail.com SHREE GOLVALKAR GURUJI MARG, 
mentapritiv@grmail cam VIDYAVIHAR (EAST), MUMBAI - 400077. 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of M/s. Dalal Street Investments Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of M/s. Dalal Street Investments 

Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, and 

the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of 

Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 

standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial 

statements”) 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by The 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 

read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind 

AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 

the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in 

equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the independent 

requirement that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 

provisions of the Act and the rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on standalone financial statements. 



Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements 

as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 

on these matters. 

Information other than Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 

thereon 

The company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other 

information. The other information comprises of the information included in the 

management discussion and analysis, Boards report including Annexures to Board's 

Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s information, but does not include the 

standalone financial statements and our auditors report thereon. 

Our opinion on standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and 

we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statement, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statement or other information 

obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 

nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 

Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 

the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 

true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 

with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair 

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 



In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 

Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 

process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 

these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 

the override of internal control. 

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order 

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 

143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 



related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 

and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of 

the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 

our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 

or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, 

we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 

of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 



b) 

c) 

d) 

g) 

h) 

i. 

il. 

iil. 

iv. 

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income, Statement of Change in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by 

this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS 

specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 

March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 

Report in “Annexure B”.a 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 

with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 

in its standalone financial statements. 

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or 

accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts 

including derivative contracts. The Company did not have any long-term derivative 

contracts. 

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 

any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 

entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 



indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 

received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 

(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that nothing has come to 

our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations given under sub- 

clause (a) and (b) by the management contain any material mis-statement. 

v. In our opinion Company has complied with section 123 of the Companies Act,2013 

with respect to dividend declared/paid during the year. The Company has not 

declared / paid any dividend during the year. 

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books 

of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail 

(edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and 

accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

For Priti V Mehta & Company 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn.No:129568W 

Priti V. Mehta 

Proprietor 

M. No.130514 

UDIN: 23130514BGXSLD1016 

Date: 26.5.2023 

Place: Mumbai 



“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our report to the Members of Dalal Street Investments Limited of even date.) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the 

Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of 

audit, we state that: 

i. 

ii. 

In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and 

intangible assets: 

(a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment. 

The Company does not have any right to use assets. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 

Intangible Assets. The Company does not have any intangible assets. 

(b) Plant, Property and Equipment have been physically verified by the management 

during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable 

properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee 

and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in 

the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right 

of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have 

been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami 

property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and 

rules made thereunder during the year. 

(a) The Company is neither a manufacturing nor a trading Company. Therefore, the 

provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 

crores, in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial 

institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence the provisions of 

clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the books of account, the Company has not granted any loans, secured 



vi. 

vii. 

viii. 

or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties 

listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Consequently, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 

3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

During the year the company has not provided any loans, guarantees, advances and 

securities to the director of the company and the company is compliant provisions of 

section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 

3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives 

issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any 

other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) 

Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government 

under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 

3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(a) In our opinion and according to the records of the company, undisputed statutory 

dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ 

State Insurance, Income-tax, GST, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service tax, 

Custom Duty, Excise Duty, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the 

extent applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate 

authorities. There were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31st March,2023 for a 

period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount 

payable in respect of income tax, GST, service tax, sales tax, customs duty, excise duty, 

value added tax and cess whichever applicable, which have not been deposited on 

account of any disputes. 

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 

1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 

(a) According to the information and explanations givens to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon. 



Xi. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared as a 

willful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or government or government 

authority. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, The Company has not obtained any term 

loans during the year. Accordingly, requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the 

Order is applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on 

short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any 

subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, requirement to report on clause 

3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any 

subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, requirement to report on clause 

3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of an initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under 

clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and 

hence reporting under provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company; 

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true 

and fair view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations 

given by the management, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the 

Company has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true 

and fair view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations 

given by the management, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 

Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the 

year. 

(c) According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has 

not received any whistleblower complaints during the year. 



Xil. 

xiii. 

Xiv. 

Xvi. 

XVil. 

xviii. 

Xix. 

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties 

and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone 

financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

The company does have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 

nature of its business. Reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit 

were considered by the statutory auditor. 

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 

connected with them, covered under Section 192 of the Act. 

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of 

the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of clauses 3(xvi)(a), 

3(xvi)(b), 3(xvi)(c) and 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year as well as the 

immediately preceding financial year. 

There has been no resignation by the statutory auditors of the Company, during the 

year. 

On the basis of the financial ratios, aging and expected dates of realization of financial 

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 

financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management 

plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 

nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when 

they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 

state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further 

state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 

neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as 

and when they fall due. 



xx. Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act do not apply to the Company and 

hence provisions of clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

xxi. The Company does not prepare consolidated financials and hence provisions of clause 

3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

For Priti V Mehta & Company 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn.No:129568W 

Priti V. Mehta 

Proprietor 

M. No.130514 

UDIN: 23130514BGXSLD1016 

Date: 26.5.2023 

Place: Mumbai 



“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 

section of our report to the Members of Dalal Street Investments Limited of even date.) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financials 

Statements under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (the “Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dalal Street 

Investments Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit 

of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 

over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, 

to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 

over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 

selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and payments 

of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets 

that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 

future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI 

For Priti V Mehta & Company 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn.No:129568W 

Priti V. Mehta 

Proprietor 

M. No.130514 

UDIN: 23130514BGXSLD1016 

Date: 26.5.2023 

Place: Mumbai 



DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 

Particulars Note As at As at 
No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(1000) (1000) 
ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 3 696 87 
Investment Property 4 9,803 9,803 

Financial Assets 
Investments 5 19,687 20,950 

Other Financial Assets 6 539 932 
MAT Credit Entitlement 7 23,586 23,552 

Other Non-Current Assets 3 1,018 1,018 

35,328 56,342 
Current Assets 
Financial Assets 

Investments 5 - - 
Loan 9 381 6,107 

Trade Receivables 10 2918 382 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 551 29,506 
Other Financial Assets 6 1,816 985 

Other Current Assets 8 1,682 271 

7,348 37,251 

Total Assets 62,676 93,593 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Equity Share Capital 12 3,151 3,151 
Other Equity 13 44,828 45,351 

47,979 48,501 
Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 14 - 43,327 
Other Non-Current Liabilities 17 - - 
Provisions 18 - - 
Income Tax Liabilities (Net) 19 - - 

3,327 
Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 14 11,668 - 
Trade Payables due to 

Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprises 15 - - 
Other than Micro Enterprise and Small 

Enterprises 15 748 780 
Other Financial Liabilities 16 1,450 447 

Other Current Liabilities 17 807 482 
Provisions 18 23 55 
Income Tax Liabilities (Net) 19 - - 

14,697 1,764 

Total Equity and Liabilities 62,676 93,593 

Significant Accounting Policies 2B 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 
As per our report of even date attached. 

For Priti V. Mehta & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Director of 

Chartered Accountants Dalal Street Investments Limited 
FRN . 129568W CIN:L65990MH1977PLC357307 

Priti V. Mehta Murzash Manekshana Geeta Manekshana 

Proprietor Director Managing Director 

Membership No. 130514 (DIN:00207311) (DIN:03282077) 

Stefanie Leena Dsilva Mahesh S. Deshmukh 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 26.5.2023



DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Particulars 

INCOME 

Revenue from Operations 

Other Income 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Employee Benefits Expense 

Finance Costs 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 

Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit / (Loss) before tax 

Less : Tax expense 

1) Current Tax 

2) Taxes for earlier years 

3) Deferred Tax 

4) Mat Credit Entitlement 

5) Excess provision of tax earlier year 

Total Tax Expense 

Profit / (Loss) after tax 

Other Comprehensive Income 

(1) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profit and Loss 

(a) Fair Value change on Investment 

(it) Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss 

(a) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 

(b) Equity Instrument Through Other Comprehensive Income 

Income tax relating to item that will not reclassified to profit and loss 

Total Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earnings Per Share (*) Basic & Diluted 

Significant Accounting Policies 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For Priti V. Mehta & Company 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN . 129568W 

Priti V. Mehta 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 130514 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 26.5.2023 

Note For the period ended For the period ended 

No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(1000) (1000) 

20 10,650 3,600 

21 2,357 4,924 

13,007 8,524 

22 3,299 1,721 

23 1,499 3,377 

2B/3 50 5 

24 7.449 3,181 

12,297 8,284 

710 239 

111 3,728 

111 3,728 

710 239 

(1,233) 1,819 

(1,233) 1,819 

(523) 2,058 

36 225 0.76 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director of 

Dalal Street Investments Limited 

CIN:L65990MH1977PLC357307 

Murzash Manekshana 

Director 

(DIN:00207311) 

Stefanie Leena Dsilva 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 26.5.2023 

Geeta Manekshana 

Managing Director 

(DIN: 03282077) 

Mahesh S. Deshmukh 

Company Secretary



DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 

For the year ended 

A) Cash Flow from Operating Activities ('000) ('000) 

Net profit after tax 710 239 

Adjustment for: 

Depreciation 50 5 

Other non cash income - 
Change in fair value of financial assets fair value through OCT (1,233) 1,819 

Dividend Income (143) (98) 

Interest expenses 1,493 3,375 

Provision for tax - - 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 168 5,101 

Adjustment for changes in working capital: 

(Decrease) Increase in trade payables, current liabilities & provisions 1,264 1,196 

(Increase) / Decrease in loans and advances 5,726 255 

(Increase) / Decrease in inventory - - 

(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets (471) (535) 

(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets (1,411) 1,366 
(Increase) / Decrease in other non current assets - - 

(Decrease) / Increase in trade receivables (2,536) 512 

2,572 2,794 

Cash from Operating Activities 3,449 8,134 

Less: Direct Taxes Paid - 404 

Net Cash from Operating Activities 3,449 7,730 

B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

Decrease / (Increase) in margin money and deposits - - 

Decrease / (Increase) in Investment 1,263 (9,406) 

Decrease / (Increase) in Fixed Assets (659) (92) 

Long Term Loan and advances - - 
Dividend received 144 98 

Net Cash from Investing Activities 748 (9,400) 

C) Cash Flow from Financing Activities 

Proceeds (repayment) from borrowings (31,659) 3,038 

Interest expenses (1,493) (3,375) 
Net Cash from Financing Activities (33,152) (338) 

Net increase in Cash & Cash equivalents (28,955) (2,008) 

Opening cash & cash equivalents 29,506 31,514 

Cash & Cash equivalents as at the end of the year 551 29,506 

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 7 - Cash Flow Statement 

notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 Act’) read with rule 4 of the Companies(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and 

the relevant provision of the Act. 

2. Figures in bracket indicate cash out flow. 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For Priti V. Mehta & Company 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN . 129568W 

Priti V. Mehta 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director of 

Dalal Street Investments Limited 

CIN:L65990MH1977PLC357307 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 130514 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 26.5.2023 

Murzash Manekshana 

Director 

(DIN:00207311) 

Stefanie Leena Dsilva 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 26.5.2023 

Geeta Manekshana 

Managing Director 

(DIN:03282077) 

Mahesh S. Deshmukh 

Company Secretary
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DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Reporting Entity 
Dalal Street Investments Limited ('DSIL' or 'the Company’) has its registered office situated at 409 Dev Plaza, 

S.V. Road, Opp. Fire Brigade, Andher West, Mumbai-58. The Company has been incorporated under the 

provisions of Indian Companies Act. The Company 's equity shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. 

The Company is mainly in the busiess of providing advisory services and undertaking investment and trading 

activities. Earlier the Company was registered as a NBFC having registration No. 13.00567 and the same is 

cancelled by the RBI order dated September 11, 2018. 

Basis of preparation 

Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, 

(the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The Company’s financial statements up to and for the year ended March 31, 2023 were prepared in accordance 

with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other 

relevant provisions of the Act. 
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 26th May, 2023 

Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company’s functional 

currency. 

Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and 

liabilities and defined benefit plan assets / liabilities measured at fair value. 

Critical accounting judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The preparing of financial statements in accordance with Ind -AS require use of estimates and assumption for 

some items, which might have an effect on their recognition and measurement in the (standalone) balance sheet 

and (standalone) statement of profit and loss. The actual amounts realised may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and assumptions are required in particular for: 

(i) Property, plant and equipment, Investment property : 

Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of 

the cost may be capitalized. Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of 

the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, 

they are based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the 

3 asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, 

manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support. Assumptions also need to be made, when the Company 

assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and which components of the cost of the asset may be 

capitalised. 

ASSET CATEGORY USEFUL LIFE 

Plant and Machinery 15 

Computer servers and network systems 6 

Computer desktops and laptops 3 

Office Equipment 5 

Vehicles 8 

Furniture & Fixtures 10 

Leasehold Land Over the Primary Lease period 

Building 60 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed 

at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate 

b. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment loss, if any. Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, 

the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual 

evaluation. 

(ii) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations : 

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key 

actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation and vested future benefits and life 

expectancy. The discount rate is determined based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government 

Securities as at the Balance Sheet Date for the estimated term of the obligations.
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DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

(iii) Recognition of deferred tax assets : 

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable 

that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. The 

management is reasonably certain that taxable profits will be available to absorb carried forward losses while 

recognising deferred tax assets. 

(iv) Recognition and measurement of other provisions : 

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an 

outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual 

outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the figure included in other provisions. 

(v) Discounting of long-term financial instruments : 

All financial instruments are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition. In case of financial 

instruments which are required to subsequently measured at amortised cost, interest is accrued using the 

effective interest method. 

Measurement at fair values 

The company's accoting policies and disclosures require the measurment of fair values for financial instruments. 

When measuring the fair value of a financial assets or a financial liabilty, fair values are catagorised into 

different levels in a fair value hierachy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follow. 

Level 1 : Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 : Input other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are oservable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.derived from prices) 

Level 3 : Input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 

The Company recognises transfers due to change between levels of the fair value hierachy at the ent of the 

reporting period. 

Current and Non current classification 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per the Company's operating cycle and 

other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of business and the 

time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the 

Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — noncurrent classification 

of assets and liabilities. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

An asset is deemed impairable when recoverable value is less than its carrying cost and the difference between 

the two represents provisioning exigency. Recoverable value is the higher of the ‘Value in Use” and fair value 

as reduced by cost of disposal. Test of impairment of PPE, investment in subsidiaries / associates / joint venture 

and goodwill are undertaken under Cash Generating Unit (CGU) concept. For Intangible Assets and Investment 

Properties it is undertaken in asset specific context. Test of impairment of assets are generally undertaken based 

on indication of impairment, if any, from external and internal sources of information. Non-financial assets 

other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of 

each reporting period. 

Inventories 

The Company having inventory as a shares and securities and are measured at lower of cost and net realisable 

value. 

Foreign currency transactions 

The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency 

Transactions and balances : 

Monetary items are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the 

date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange 

differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary 

items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 

at the dates of the initial transactions. 

Employee Benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related 

service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash 

bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past 

service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.



DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

b) Defined Contribution Plan 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions 

into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company 

makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund and Employee State 

Insurance scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee 

benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees. 

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future 

payments 1s available. 
¢) Defined Benefit Plan 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The 

Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future 

benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the 

fair value of any plan assets. 

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected 

unit credit method. 
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognised in 

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net 

defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit 

obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into 

account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and 

benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates 

to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised 

immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit 

plan when the settlement occurs. 
d) Other long-term employee benefits 

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is 

the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior 

periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an 

annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements gains or losses 

are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which thev arise 

vi) Provisions and contingent liabilties 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 

obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 

to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate 

that reflects current market assumptions of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The 

unwinding of discount is recognized as finance cost. 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 

obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 

third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received 

and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

A provision for onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of 

terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. 

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be 

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of 

the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount 

cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of 

outflow of economic benefits is remote. 

vii) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of those property, plant and equipment 

which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised. All other 

borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they inccur in the statement of profit and loss. 

viii) Revenue 

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 

revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the 

fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of 

payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized: 

Sale of products 

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 

goods have passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of products is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.
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DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Sale of services 

Revenue from services are recognised as the related services are performed and in accordance with the terms of 

the agreement. When there is uncertainity as to measurment or ultimate collectability, revenue recognision is 

postponed untill such uncertainity resolved. 

Interest 

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that 

discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying 

amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included under the head “Other income” in the statement of 

profit and loss. 
Dividend 

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is 

generally when the shareholders approve the dividend 

Income tax 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it 

relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any 

adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the 

best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any related 

to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred 

tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 

against which they can be used. 

Deferred tax assets recognised or unrecognised are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced 

to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the 

liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 

Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

The Company offsets, the current tax assets and liabilities (on a year on year basis) and deferred tax assets and 

liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a 

net basis. 
Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) 

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 

evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the 

MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset thesaid asset is created by way of credit to the 

statement of profit and loss and included in deferred tax assets. The Company reviews the same at each balance 

sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing 

evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. 

Earnings per share 

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is 

calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted 

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the 

profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares 

outstanding after adjusting for the effects of all potential dilutive ordinary shares. 

Statement of Cash flow 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of 

transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 

and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from 

operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company considers all highly 

liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents. 
Amendment to Ind AS 7 

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide 

disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing 

activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a 

reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from 

financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The adoption of amendment did not have any material 

Financial instruments 

Recognition and initial measurement 

The Company initially recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial 

recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 

financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to the fair value on initial 

recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.



DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

b) Classification and subsequent measurement 

B) 

d = 

Financial assets 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose 

objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial 

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within 

a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 

assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through 

profit or loss. 

Equity Investment 

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for 

trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same 

either as at FVOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 

classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 
the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the 

instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. There is no recycling of 

the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the 

Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity 
Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and 

other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair 

value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially 

all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which the Company neither 

transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the 

financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains 

either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not 

derecognised. 

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model at an amount equal to:- 

+ 12 months expected credit losses, or 

« Lifetime expected credit losses 

depending upon whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, 

for trade receivables, the company does not track the changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment 

loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition 

Financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or 

expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the 

modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is 

recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and a 

new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
Impairment of financial assets 

Financial assets of the company comprise of trade receivable and other receivables consisting of debt 

instruments e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, and bank balance. Trade and other receivables are recognised 

initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 

provision for impairment. An impairment loss for trade and other receivables is established when there is 

objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms 

of the receivables. Impairment losses if any, are recognised in profit or loss for the period 

Offsetting of financial instrument 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet, and only 

when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle 

them on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously
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DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

PLANT & COMPUTERS, FURNITURE OFFICE TOTAL 

PARTICULARS LAND [BUILDING | MACHINER | VEHICLES LAPTOPS & AND FIXTURES EQUIPMEN (000) 

Y MOBILES {'000) T 

Gross Carrying Value (At Deemed Cost) 

Balance at 1st April, 2021 - - - - - - - - 

Addition 92 92 

Additions {on account of merger) - 

Disposals/Discardment/Sale of Assets - 

Transfer to Investment Property - 

Balance at 31st March, 2022 - - - - 92 - - 92 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment - 

Balance at 1st April, 2021 - 

Additions {on account of merger) - 

Eliminated on Disposals/Discardment/Sale of Assets - 

Depreciation Charges 5 5 

Transfer to Investment Property - 

Balance at 31st March, 2022 - - - - 5 - - 5 

Net Carrying value as on 31st March, 2022 - - - - 87 - - 87 

Gross Carrying Value (At Deemed Cost) - 

Balance at 1st April, 2022 - - - - 92 - - 92 

Addition on account of merger - 

Addition - - 659 659 

Disposals/Discardment/Sale of Assets - 

Balance at 31st March, 2023 - - - - 92 - 659 751 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment - 

Balance at 1st April, 2022 - - - - 5 - - 5 

Eliminated on disposal/discardment of assets - 

Depreciation Charges 29 21 50 

Addition on account of merger - 

Eliminated on Disposals/Discardment/Sale of Assets/Adjustment - 

Balance at 31st March, 2023 - - - - 34 - 21 55 

Net Carrying value as on 31st March, 2023 - - - - 58 - 638 696 
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Gross Carrying Value 

Balance at 1st April 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March 

DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

* Investment in Property consists of Residential property used for leasing out. 

Financial Assets - Investments 

Investments measured at Fair Value through other comprehensive 

income (FVOCT) 
Investment in Equity Instruments (quoted) 

Investment in Quoted share 

Investments measured at Fair Value through other comprehensive 

income (FVOCT) 

Investment in Equity Instruments (unquoted) 

Investment in Unquoted share 

Investments measured at Amortised Cost 

Investment in Debentures of Other Companies 

Investment in Unquoted Debentures 

* Qutoted investment are value on fair value except the investment which have dicrepancy and written off during current year 

Financial Assets -Other 

Unsecured, considered good 

- With govermant authority 

MAT Credit Entitlement 

MAT Credit Entitlement 

Other Assets 

Advance for expenses 
Deposits 
Advance against property 
Other Receivables 

Non-Current Current 

As at As at As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
("000) (1000) (1000) (1000) 

9,802.75 - - 
- 9,803 - - 

9,803 9,803 - - 

Non-Current Current 

As at As at As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
("000) (1000) (1000) (1000) 

17,237 18,500 - - 

2,450 2,450 - - 

19,687 20,950 - - 

Non-Current Current 

As at As at As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
("000) (1000) (1000) (1000) 

932 1,816 985 
539 932 1,816 985 

Non-Current Current 

As at As at As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
("000) (1000) (1000) (1000) 

23,586 23,552 - - 
23,586 23,552 - - 

Non-Current Current 

As at As at As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
("000) (1000) (1000) (1000) 

1,000 1,000 819 - 
18 18 - - 

- - 863 271 
1,018 1,018 1,682 271 
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DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Inventories 

(At lower of cost and net realisable value) 

(Net of provision for non-moving and obsolete stocks) 

Shares and securities 

Financial Assets -Loans 

Unsecured, considered good 

- Other Loan and Advance 

Current Financial Assets -Trade Receivables 

Unsecured, considered good 

Outstanding for less than 6 months 
Outstanding for more than 6 months but less than 1 year 

Outstanding for more than 1 year but less than 2 year 

Outstanding for more than 2 year but less than 3 year 

Outstanding for more than 3 years 

Current financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equvilent 

a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

i) Balances with Banks 

In Current Accounts 

ii) Cash on Hand 

b) Other Bank Balances 

Short-term Bank Deposits 

(Maturity within 12 months) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

('000) ('000) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

('000) ('000) 

381 6,107 

381 6,107 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

('000) ('000) 

2918 324 

- 58 

2,918 382 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

('000) ('000) 

430 29.386 

120 120 

551 29,506 

551 29,506 



A. Equity Share Capital 
(1) Current reporting period 

DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

current reporting period 

Balance at the beginning of the [Changes in [Restated [Changes [Balance at 
current reporting period Equity Share [balance at the [in equity [the end of 

Capital due [beginning of [share the current 
toprior [the current [capital [reporting 
period errors [reporting |during [period 

period the 

330740 5 ET 

(2) Previous reporting period 
Balance at the beginning of the [Changes in [Restated [Changes [Balance at 
previous reporting Equity Share [balance at the [in equity [the end of 
period Capital due [beginning of [share the 

toprior the previous capital previous 
period errors [reporting [during [reporting 

period the [period 
nreyviow: 

31.50,740 - [3150740 

B. Other Equity 
(1) Current reporting period (000) 

Reserve & Surplus 
xchange] 
difference 

Share Equity Debt Equity . 5m Omeritems of | MY application | component of set |strumend] Bitective [er oie received 
Particulars onmoncy | compound. | Capital | Securities | General | Retained | eS | through | portion of |" gthe [mie | met | Tee 

pending | financial | Reserve | Premium | Reserves | Earnings [08 0 other [Coton] | dmancia | ZORRRE | share 
allotment | instruments EA Comprehen] Hedges P HN Y | warrants 

sive Incom, sofa 
foreign 

operation 
Balance at the begmmng of the 2% B&D) [5 
current reporting period 
Changes in accounting policy or E E E 
prior 
period errors 
Restated balance at the beginning E E E 
of the current reporting 
period 

Total Comprehensive Income for E | | 
the current year 
Dividends 
Transfer to retaied carmings 1 1 
[Any other change E E 
0 be specified) 
Balance at the end of the B B B B 0 @D) B B B B B B B [3 



@) Previous reporting period 

Reserve & Surplus 
Exchang] 
difference} 

Sh oui . son M 
are quity Debt Equity | tr in| Other items of oney application | component of] ) Instrument] Effective ) received 

. ) ” , ) instruments " Revaluati| the Other : 
Particulars on money compound | Capital | Securities General Retained through Other s through | portion of on 5 wall Comprehensive against Total 

pending financial |Reserve | Premium | Reserves | Earnings “] Other Cash Flow mancia P share . (Comprehensiv Surplus Income (specify allotment | instruments Comprehen] Hedges warrants eIncome |; sofa nature) sive Incom f 
foreign 

operation] 

Balance at the begimmng of the 126200 | (32.906) 13.294 
current reporting period 
(Changes in accounting policy or E E 
prior 
period errors 
[Restat cd balance at the beginning E E 
of the current reporting 
period 

Total Comprehensive Income for E 2 2 
the current year 
Dividends 
Transfer to retained carnings 0 0 
[Any other change E E 
to be specified) 
Balance at the end of the B B B B 126200 (82,909) B B B B B B B 43.29% 
current reporting period 

For Priti V. Mehta & Company 
(Chartered Accountants 
FRN . 129568W 

Priti V. Mehta 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 13 514 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 26.5.2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director of 

Dalal Street Investments Limited 

CIN: L65990MH197 7PLC357307 

Murzash Manekshana 

Director 

(DIN:00207311) 

Stefanie Leena Dsilva 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 26.5.2023 

Geeta Manckshana 
Managing Director 
(DIN:03282077) 

Mahesh 8. Deshmukh 
Company Secretary 



DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

12 Equity Share Capital 

Asat As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
(1000) ("000) 

Authorised Share Capital 

20,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 20,000 20,000 

(P.Y. 5,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each) 

Issued, subscribed and paid up shares 

3,15,074 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 3,151 3,151 
(P.Y. 3,15,074 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up) 

3,151 3,151 

a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding: 

Share outstanding, begining of the year 315 315 
Shares issued during the period - - 
Shares outstanding, end of the year 315 315 

b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares: 

Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share with a right to receive per share dividend by the Company, when declared. In the event of liquidation, the equity 

shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by them. 

c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company: 

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

No. of equity shares As a % of total| No. of equity] As a % of total 

holding shares holding 

Equity Shares with voting rights 

MURZASH MANEKSHANA 235 74.68 235 74.68 
Total 235 74.68 235 74.68 

d) Details of shareholdering of promoters 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

% Change 

Promoter Name No. of Shares %of total shares No. of Shares %of total shares during the 

year 
MURZASH MANEKSHANA 2,35,305.00 74.68 2,35,305.00 74.68 (0.00) 

13 Other Equity 

Asat As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a) General reserve ('000) ('000) 

As at beginning of the year and at the end of the year (a) 1,26,200 1,26,200 

b) Retained Earnings 

As at beginning of the year (80,349) (82,906) 
Add: Profit / (Loss) after tax for the year 710 239 
Less: Transfer from Deferred Tax Asset / Liability 
Add: Profit from other comperhensive income (1,233) 1,819 
Less: Loss from other comperhensive income 

(81,372) (80,849) 

44,828 45,351 

Nature of Reserves: 

1 Share premium 

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013. 

2 General reserve 

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profit from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by transfer from one component of 

equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and loss. 

3 Retained earning 

Retained earning comprises of undistributed earnings after taxes. 
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DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Financial Liability - Borrowings 

Unsecured 
Intercorporate Loan 

From Director and their relative 

Trade Payables 

Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprises 

Outstanding for less than 6 months 

Outstanding for more than 6 months but less than 1 year 

Outstanding for more than 1 year but less than 2 year 

Outstanding for more than 2 year but less than 3 year 

Outstanding for more than 3 years 

Other than Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprises 

Outstanding for less than 6 months 

Outstanding for more than 6 months but less than 1 year 

Outstanding for more than 1 year but less than 2 year 

Outstanding for more than 2 year but less than 3 year 

Outstanding for more than 3 years 

Other Financial Liabilities 

Salary Payable 

Other Payables 

Other Liabilities 

Payable towards Statutory Liabilities 

Other Payables 

Provisions 

Provision for Expenses 

Provision for Taxation 

Income Tax liabilities (Net) 

Provision for Taxation (Net of Advance Tax) 

Non-Current Current 

As at As at Asat As at 
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

(000) (000) (000) (000) 
- 43,327 6,868 - 
- - 4,800 - 
- 43.327 11,668 - 

Non-Current Current 

As at As at Asat As at 

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022 
(000) (000) (000) (000) 

- - 748 780 

- - 383 780 
- - 365 - 

_ - 748 780 

Non-Current Current 

As at As at Asat As at 

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022 
(000) (000) (000) (000) 

- - 1,450 47 

_ - 1.450 447 

Non-Current Current 

As at As at Asat As at 

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022 
(000) (000) (000) (000) 

- - 682 482 

- - 125 - 
B - 807 481.94 

Non-Current Current 

As at As at Asat As at 
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

(000) (000) (000) (000) 
- - 23 55 

- - 23 55 

Non-Current Current 

As at As at Asat As at 
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022 

(000) (000) (000) (000) 



20 Revenue from Operations 

21 

Consultancy Services 

Other Income 

Interest income 

Dividend 

Gain on Sale of Investments 

Interest on Income Tax Refund 

Profit on Derivative Trading 

Rent Income 

Other Income 

DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

For the Period ended For the Period ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

('000) ('000) 

10,650 3,600 

10,650 3,600 

For the Period ended For the Period ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

('000) ('000) 

163 1,376 

143 98 

404 1,719 

37 - 

- 139 

1,569 1,534 

40 36 

2,357 4,924 
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DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Employee Benefit Expense 

Salary and wages 

Finance costs 

Interest on debts borrowing 

Other Borrowing Cost 

Bank charges 

Other Expenses 

Payment to Auditors 

Audit Fees 

GST On Audit Fees 

Advertisement 

Donation 

D-Mat Ch. 

Filling Fees 

Int.Paid On T.D.S Late Pyt. 

Foreign Exchange Loss 

Listing Fees 

Membership &Subsciption 

Management Fees 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

Office Expense 

Event Expenses 

Professional fees 

Rent Expenses 

Repairs &Maintainance 

Security Transaction and Brokerage Charges 

Telephone Expenses 

Travelling And Conveyance 

SEBI Waiver Processing Fees 

Website Charges 

For the Period ended For the Period ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

('000) ('000) 

3,299 1,721 

3,299 1,721 

For the Period ended For the Period ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

('000) ('000) 

1,493 3,375 
4 _ 

2 2 

1,499 3,377 

For the Period ended For the Period ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

('000) ('000) 

25 25 

20 18 

35 15 

2 3 

14 5 

20 5 

68 - 

300 300 

420 129 

152 912 

18 30 

824 1 

1,409 - 

775 1,461 

120 120 

2,186 - 

19 123 

28 15 

990 - 

10 - 

14 18 

7,449 3,181 



25 Financial Instruments - Accounting classification and fair value measurements 

a) The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, 

other than in forced or liquidation sale. 

b) The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value: 

1) Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilties, short term loans from banks and other 

financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. 

2) Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the company based on parameters such as interest rate and individual credit 

worthiness of the counter party. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected losses of these receivables. 

c) The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques: 

Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3: Valuation techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data. 

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financials liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy : 

As at March 31, 2023 (000) 

Carrying amount 

FVTPL FVOCI 
Financial Financial liabilities - Total carrying 

assets -cost/ cost/amortised cost amount Fair value 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

Investments - 19,687 - - 19,687 19,687 

Financial assets not measure at fair value 

Trade Receivables - - 2,918 - 2,918 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 551 - 551 551 

Other Bank Balances - - - - - 

Loans - - 381 - 381 

Other Financial Assets - - 539 - 539 

- 19,687 4,389 - 24,076 20,237 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 

Borrowings - - 11,668 11,668 

Trade Payables - - 748 748 

Other Financial Liabilities - - 705 705 

- - 13,121 13,121 

The Company has disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other financial 

assets, borrowings, trade payables. 

As at March 31, 2022 (000) 

Carrying amount 

Financial . Topi : 
EVTPL Fvocl assets - cost / Financial liabilities - Total carrying 

cost/ amortised cost amount 
amortised cost 

Fair value 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

Investments - 20,950 - - 20,950 20,950 

Financial assets not measure at fair value 

Trade Receivables - 382 - 382 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 29,506 - 29,506 29,506 

Other Bank Balances - - - - 

Loans - 6,107 - 6,107 

Other Financial Assets - 932 - 932 
20,950 36,927 - 57,877 50,456 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 

Borrowings - - 43,327 43,327 

Trade Payables - - 780 780 

Other Financial Liabilities - - 536 536 
- - 44,644 44,644 

The Company has disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other financial 

assets, borrowings, trade payables.



As at March 31, 2021 (000) 
Carrying amount 

Financial 

FVTPL Fvocl assets -cost/ | nancial liabilities - Total carrying Fair value 
Ny cost/ amortised cost amount 

amortised cost 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 

Investments 16,346 5,000 - 21,346 21,346 

Financial assets not measure at fair value 

Trade Receivables - 894 - 894 - 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 31,514 - 31,514 31,514 

Other Bank Balances - - - - - 

Loans - 6,362 - 6,362 - 

Other Financial Assets - 854 - 854 - 
16,346 44,623 - 60,970 52,860 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 

Borrowings - - 40,289 40,289 - 

Trade Payables - - 290 290 - 

Other Financial Liabilities - - 278 278 - 
- - 40,858 40,858 - 

The Company has disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other financial 

assets, borrowings, trade payables. 

As at April 01, 2020 (000) 

Carrying amount 

FUTPL FVOCI - Equity orinancial | Financial liabilifies - Total carrying Fair value 
Instruments . cost/ amortised cost amount 

amortised cost 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 

Investments 25,892 5,000 - 30,892 30,892 

Financial assets not measure at fair value 

Trade Receivables - 569 - 569 - 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 3,039 - 3,039 3,039 

Other Bank Balances - - - - - 
Loans - 2,196 - 2,196 - 

Other Financial Assets - 584 - 584 - 
25,892 11,388 N 37,280 33,931 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 

Borrowings - - - - - 

Trade Payables - - - - - 

Other Financial Liabilities - - 20,102 20,102 - 

N N 20,102 20,102 N 

The Company has disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other financial 

assets, borrowings, trade payables.
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a) 

b) 

DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Financial risk management 

Risk management framework 

The Company’s management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. 

The Company conducts yearly risk assessment activities to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls 

and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s 

activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control 

environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

The Company has a system in place to ensure risk identification and ongoing periodic risk assessment is carried out. The Board of directors periodically 

monitors the risk assessment. 

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments : 

- Credit risk 

- Liquidity risk 

- Market risk 

- Interest risk 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The 

Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, 

foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The company generally doesn't have collatera 

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as 

follows :- 

(in Indian Rupees '000) 
Particulars As at As at As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 April 01, 2020 

Trade receivables 2,918 382 894 569 

Cash and cash equivalents 551 29,506 31,514 3,039 

Other bank balances - - - - 

Loans 381 6,107 6,362 2,196 

Other financial assets 539 932 854 584 

Total 4,389 36,927 39,623 6,388 

Trade receivables 

Customer credit risk is managed as per Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit risk has 

always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, estabilishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers 

to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. 

An impairment analysis is performed for all major customers at each reporting date on an individual basis. In addition, a large number of minor receivables 

are grouped into homogenous group and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit 

risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade 

receivables as low, as its customers are located in several industries and operate in largely independent markets. 

Contractual cash flows 

(in Indian Rupees '000) 
Carrying amount Less than one year More than 1 year 

As at March 31, 2023 2,918 2,918 - 

As at March 31, 2022 382 382 - 

As at March 31, 2021 894 894 - 

As at April 01, 2020 569 569 - 

Bank balances and deposits with banks 

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the company's finance department as per Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only 

with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of 

Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s Board of directors. The limits are set to 

minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by 

delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient 

liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 

Company's reputation. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include 

estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements. 

As at March 31, 2023 Contractual cash flows 

Carrying amount Less than one year More than 1 year 
Borrowings 11,668 11,668 

Trade payables - - - 

Other financial liabilities 

11,668 BE 11,668 

As at March 31, 2022 Contractual cash flows 

(in Indian Rupees '060) 
Carrying amount Less than one year More than 1 year 

Borrowings 43,327 3,038 40,289 

Trade payables - - - 

Other financial liabilities 

43327 3,038 40,289 
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DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

As at March 31, 2021 Contractual cash flows 
(in Indian Rupees '060) 

Carrying amount Less than one year More than 1 year 

Borrowings 40,289 20,187 20,102 

Trade payables - - - 

Other financial liabilities - - - 

40,289 20,187 20,102 

As at April 01,2020 Contractual cash flows 

(in Indian Rupees '060) 
Carrying amount Less than one year More than 1 year 

Borrowings 20,102 20,102 - 

Trade payables - - - 

Other financial liabilities - - - 

20,102 20,102 - 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value or future cash flows arising out of change in the price of a financial instrument. These include 

change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive 

instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, 

payables and loans and borrowing. 

The company manages market risk through a risk management committee engaged in, inter alia, evaluation and identification of risk factors with the object 

of governing / mitigation them accordingly to company's objectives and declared policies in specific context of impact thereof on various segments of 

financial instruments. 

Currency risk 

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is mismatch between the currencies in which sales, purchase are denominated and the 

respective functional currencies of Company. The Company has no foreign currency transaction and so there is no currency risk. 

Interest risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 

entity’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

At the reporting date there are no interest risk to entity as having no debts at time of reporing date. 

(space intentionally left blank)
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DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Income Taxes 

Income Tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Current Tax 

In respect of current year 

Adjustments in respect of previous years 

Deferred Tax 

In respect of current year 

Adjustments in respect of previous years 

Income tax expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
plans 

Applicable corporate tax rate 

Current Tax Liabilities 

Provision for Taxation (Net of Advance Tax) 

Current Tax Assets 

Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Taxation) 

MAT credit entitlement 

Opening balance 

MAT credit entitlement / (reversal) for earlier years 

MAT credit entitlement / (reversal) for current year 

Closing balance 

Capital Management 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

111 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

3,728 

(in Indian Rupees '000) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 

220 

27.82% 27.82% 27.82% 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

27276 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

23,548 

(in Indian Rupees '000) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 

23,329 

111 3,728 220 

27,387 27,276 23,548 

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the Group. 

The primary objective of the Group when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as 

to maximize shareholder value. 

Consequent to such capital structure, there are no externally imposed capital requirements. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group 

allocates its capital for distribution as dividend or re-investment into business based on its long term financial plans. 

The Group monitors capital based on the following ratio :- 

Total Debt (current maturities under other financial liabilities ) 

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Less: Current Investment 

Net Debt 

Equity Share Capital 

Other equity 

Total Equity 

Debt to Equity Ratio 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

(in Indian Rupees '000) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 

11,668 - - 
551 29,506 31,514 

11,118 (29,506) (31,514) 
3,151 3,151 3,151 

44,828 45351 43,294 
47,979 48,501 16,444 

023 (0.61) (0.68)
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DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

Contingent Liability not provided for: 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 

the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the 

reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the 

risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost 

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: 

« a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; 

* a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible; 

« a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote 

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date 

The disclosure of Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits” is as follows: 

Defined Contribution Plan 

The Company has not charged any amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the financial year under defined contribution plan as 

emplover’s contribution asere is no liability regarding to the same 

Defined Benefit Plan 

The company is no require any defined benefit plan for the employee and there is no provision regarding to the same is required. 

(Space intentionally left blank)
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Related Party Disclosures: 

DALAL STREET INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

The disclosures pertaining to the related parties as required by Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosure” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as 

applicable, are as under: 

List of Holding Company 

List of Fellow Subsidiary Companies 

Key Managerial Personnel 

No holding company 

No fellow subsidary company 

: Mr. Murzash Manekshe Director 

: Mrs. Geeta Manekshan: Managing Director (w.e.f 25.5.2022) 

: Mr. Umesh Padamsi GcDirector 

: Mr. Pranav Pinakin Jos Director 

: Mr. Viral Nitin Karia Chief Executive Officer till 25.05.2022 

: Mr. Risha Shah Chief Financial Officer till 25.05.2022 

: Mrs. Geeta Manekshan: Chief Executive Officer from 25.05.2022 

: Mrs. Stefanie Leena Ds Chief Financial Officer from 25.05.2022 

: Mr. Mahesh S. Deshmu Company Secretary w.e.f. 08.04.2019 

Enterprises in which Key management personnels are interested : 

1. Jhingo Capital Management Pvt Ltd 

2. Boogie Venture Pvt Ltd 

3. Altamount Capital Management Pvt Ltd 

4. Vertie Realty LLP 

5. Ahimsa Verite LLP 

6. Verite Hospitality LLP 

7. Verite Lux Homes LLP 

8. Verite Value Homes Projects Pvt Ltd. 

9. Verite Smart Homes Pvt Ltd 

10. Keen Investment & Leasing Ltd. 

Disclosure of material transaction with related parties and transaction ('000) 

Particular Enterprises over which 

significantinfluence is exercised by key 

Key Managerial Personnel Total 

31st March 2023 31st March 2022 31st March 2023 1st March 202] 1st March 202 B1st March 2022 

Loan Taken 

Opening Balance 

Keen Investment & Leasing Ltd. 

Pavan Kumar Sanwarmal 

Loan Repaid during the year 

Keen Investment & Leasing Ltd. 

Pavan Kumar Sanwarmal 

Geeta Manekshana 

Loan Taken During the Year 

Keen Investment & Leasing Ltd. 

Pavan Kumar Sanwarmal 

Geeta Manekshana 

Closing Balance 

Keen Investment & Leasing Ltd. 

Pavan Kumar Sanwarmal 

Geeta Manekshana 4,800 4,800 

Compensation paid to Key Managerial Personnel 

Employee Benefit 

Mr. Viral Nitin Karia 

Ms. Rishi Shah 

Ms. Megha Mehul Unadkat 

Mr. Mahesh S. Deshmukh 

Mrs. Stefanie Leena Dsilva 

Ms. Geeta Manekshana 

**K ey Managerial Personnel who are under the employment of the Company are entitled to post employment benefits and other long term employee benefits recognised 

as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits” in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are lump sum amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the
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32 Financial Ratios 
+
x
 

ox 
ox

 

Current Ratio (in times) 
Total Current Assets / Total Current Liabilities 

Debt - Equity Ratio (in times’ 
Borrowings / Shareholders Equity 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times 

(Net Profit After Tax + Depreciation + Interest) / 

(Interest Expense + Principal Repayment) 

Return on Equity (ROE) (in %; 

Net Profits after taxes / Average Shareholders Equity 

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio (in times 

Revenue from Operations / Average Trade 
Receivables 

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (in times 
Other Expenses / Average Trade Payables 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times 
Revenue from Operations / Average Working Capital 
(i.e. Total Current Assets Less Total Current 

Liabilities 

Net Profit Ratio (in %) 
Net Profit / Revenue from Operations 

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) (in % 
Earnings before interest and taxes / Capital 

Employed (i.e. Net Worth) 

Return on Investment (ROI) (in % 

Income from Invested Fund/ Average Investments 

Reasons for Variances 

Numerator 

7.348 

11,668 

2,253 

710 

10,650 

7.449 

10,650 

710 

2,203 

2279 

Reduction in Revenue from Operation and Net Profit of the Company. 

Increase in Trade Payable and decrease in Trade Receivables. 

Decrease in Current Assets and Increase in Current Liabilities 
Decrease in Capital gain on sale of investements as compared to Previous Year 

Denominator 

14,697 

47,979 

44,820 

48,240 

1,650 

764 

14,069 

10,650 

47.979 

30,121 

For the year ended 
March 31,2023 

0.50 

147% 

6.66% 

4.59% 

7.57% 

For the year ended 
March 31,2022 

21.12 

0.50% 

6.64% 

7.45% 

18.15% 

Variances 

-9763% 

-72.78% 

-9531% 

194.20% 

14.26% 

63.90% 

693.29% 

0.33% 

-38.39% 

-58.31%
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33 Auditor’s remuneration charged to accounts: 

a) Audit fees 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

25 
b) Auditors remuneration in other capacity - 
¢) Reimbursement of expenses 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

25 

(in Indian Rupees '000) 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 

25 

25 25 25 

34 Based on the information available with the Company, none of suppliers have been identified, who are registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006 (MSMED) to whom the Company owes and the same is not outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31 March 2020. The information has been determined to the 

extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. 

35 In case, by applying the definitions of “business segment’ and “geographical segment’, it is concluded that there is neither more than one business segment nor more than one 

geographical segment, segment information as per this Standard is not required to be disclosed. 

36 Earnings per share: 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Profit After Tax 710 239 
Weighted average number of shares 315 315 

Basic Earnings Per Share 2.25 0.76 
‘Weighted average number of shares (adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential 315 315 
Diluted Earnings Per Share 2.25 0.76 

Face Value per Equity Share 10.00 10.00 

37 Figures of previous year have been regrouped, reclassified and recast, wherever considered necessary. 

(in Indian Rupees '000) 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 

1,382 
315 
4.39 
315 
4.39 

10.00 

38 The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 and the transition date opening Balance Sheet as at April 01, 2022 were audited by our 

firm. 

As per our Report of even date annexed . 

For Priti V. Mehta & Company 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN . 129568W 

Priti V. Mehta 
Proprietor 

Membership No. 130514 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 26.5.2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Director of 

Murzash Manekshana 

Director 

(DIN:00207311) 

Stefanie Leena Dsilva 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 26.5.2023 

Dalal Street Investments Limited 

CIN:L65990MH1977PLC357307 

Geeta Manekshana 
Managing Director 

(DIN:03282077) 

Mahesh S. Deshmukh 
Company Secretary
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